
History of Stony Stratford Lawn Tennis Club 
An account from one that has lived (most of) it 

 

The earliest record we have of Stony Stratford Lawn Tennis Club is 14th August 1879.   

On that day the Prize Cup was won by a W. H Bull at the lawn tennis club in Stony.   

This is just two years after the first championship at Wimbledon and four years after 

tennis was incorporated into the archery club at Edgbaston in 1875 (the earliest surviving 

club in the UK).   We know this from an engraved cup kept at the club, but of course we 

might be even older!  The club was thought to be located possibly where the Cofferidge 

Close car park is now.    

 

But, like the AELTC who moved from Worple Road to its current site in Church Road in 

1922, SSLTC moved to its current site at the Ancell Sports Ground in 1923.   Frederick 

Ancell, a local builder, left £18,000 with instructions in his will that a trust be set up for 

the benefit of residents of the town.   Trustees acting for Mr. Ancell, purchased the 

ground in in Ostlers Lane in 1921.    

 

In 1921 they had a shale court laid (Court 1 today), and also in that year a railway 

carriage was purchased from Wolverton Carriage and Railway Works and delivered for 

the sum of five shillings to be used as a Pavilion.  

 

The Tennis Club moved to the site in 1923 and during that year and additional four grass 

courts were laid (Courts 2-5 today).   A further two further grass courts were laid around 

1935 where our clay courts are today, however these were dug up during the  Second 

World War to aid the ‘Dig for Victory’ campaign for extra food.  Until the end of the 

War there were around 100 members with the Club playing in the Bucks Shield leagues 

from 1946. 

 

In the late 1960s with new blood and enthusiasm the Club’s future looked secure and in 

1978 the first shale court was laid on what was the old ladies bowling green (Courts 6&7 

today).  This was replaced with a pair of all-weather courts in 1982 and fitted with 

floodlights paid for by members and friends sponsoring an attempt to break the ‘Guinness 

Book of Records non-stop playing tennis match.   Unfortunately the four men playing 

just failed 72 hours of continuous tennis and consequently didn’t make the record book, 

but we did get our floodlights! 

 

In 1983/1984 the 8&9 shale courts were replaced with two all weather-courts, with a 

short tennis court marked out for the juniors, and a practice wall was completed thus 

utilising all available space.   This provided four grass and five all-weather courts. 

 

Since the 1980s regular improvements have made by the members: 

 

• 1987 - the four grass courts and one all-weather court were laid with an 

Omnisport synthetic grass all-weather surface and floodlights fitted to a third 

court.  (Courts 1-5) 

 



• 1990 - Judy Angus joined the Club as the Club Professional which was a step 

towards cementing a relationship to take us into the future. 

 

• 2001 – Courts 1-5 were completely rebuilt and re-laid with synthetic sand filled 

grass and state of the art (at the time) floodlights fitted to all 9 courts at a cost of 

£150,000.  Club funds were assisted by Sport England and the LTA. 

 

• 2006 – a new two storey brick pavilion was opened with kitchen, changing rooms, 

bar, office, shop and junior clubhouse room at a cost of £260,000 funded by the 

club and membership loans.   

 

• 2011 – we tendered our coaching, switching from a retainer based to an incentive 

based model under the leadership of John Cavill.  The number of coaches 

increased from one professional plus an assistant, to nine coaches, a fitness coach, 

a game psychologist and countless assistants.   

 

• 2014 – we rebuilt our last two hard courts (8&9), installing artificial clay covered 

by an Air Dome for the winter months at a cost of £140,000, funded by the club 

and a grant from Hockey England. 

 

• 2023 – Courts 1-5 were resurfaced with artificial “Tiger” turf   

 

• 2024 – our successful Easter G4 tournament was upgraded to a G3 including both 

junior and open events.   In 2025 it attracted 291 entries. 

 

• 2025 and beyond – the club converted to a Limited company (CASC) a part of 

renegotiating a new lease, and are planning to convert all nine courts to LED 

lighting.  In August 2025, the club celebrated 102 years at their current site, and at 

least 146 years as a club, with a visit to the AELTC with a delegation spending 

the day at Wimbledon, playing on the grass and entertained to a cocktail reception 

and dinner in the Centre Court complex. 

 

Today, SSLTC has an active membership of around 480 members of which over 200 are 

under 18.  We continue to strive to be the best family tennis club in the local region, and 

are very proud that we have now have a number of “home-grown” juniors in the national 

top 20 for their age group.   Court utilisation across our nine courts is at a record high and 

the club is always busy and buzzing.   We celebrated our “site” Centenary in 2023 with a 

large garden party for all current and past members in July.    


